ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 26, 2006
3:23 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Pete Kott
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeber g
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative David Guttenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG( S)

Regul at ory Conmi ssi on of Al aska

Janis WIson — Anchorage
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

CS FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 300(L&C)

"An Act relating to the handling of negative equity in notor
vehicle transactions; and relating to the contents of retail
install ment contracts."”

- MOVED CSSB 300(L&C) QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 300

SHORT TI TLE. MOTOR VEHI CLE NEGATI VE EQUI TY/ CONTRACTS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) SEEKI NS

02/ 14/ 06 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 14/ 06 (S) TRA, L&C

02/ 23/ 06 (H) TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 23/ 06 (H -- Meeting Cancel ed --

03/ 09/ 06 (S) TRA AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- April 26, 2006



03/ 09/ 06 (S) Moved SB 300 Qut of Conmittee

03/ 09/ 06 (S) M NUTE( TRA)

03/ 10/ 06 (S) TRA RPT 2DP 1INR

03/ 10/ 06 (S) DP: HUGAE NS, KOOKESH

03/ 10/ 06 (S) NR: FRENCH

03/ 16/ 06 (S L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 16/ 06 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 16/ 06 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 28/ 06 (S L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 28/ 06 (S) Moved CSSB 300(L&C) Qut of Committee

03/ 28/ 06 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 29/ 06 (S) L& RPT CS 4DP NEW
TI TLE

03/ 29/ 06 (S DP: BUNDE, DAVIS, ELLIS, SEEKINS

04/ 05/ 06 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

04/ 05/ 06 (S) VERSI ON:  CSSB 300( L&C)

04/ 06/ 06 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

04/ 06/ 06 (H) TRA, L&C

04/ 25/ 06 (H) TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

04/ 25/ 06 (H) Moved Qut of Conmttee

04/ 25/ 06 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

04/ 26/ 06 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

JANI S WLSQN, Appointee

to the Regul atory Commi ssion of Al aska (RCA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Regulatory
Conmi ssi on of Al aska.

SENATOR RALPH SEEKI NS

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as the sponsor of SB 300.

CLYDE (ED) SN FFEN, JR., Assistant Attorney General
Commerci al / Fai r Busi ness Section

G vil Division

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Expressed support and answered questions
during hearing on SB 300.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- April 26, 2006



CHAI R TOM ANDERSON cal | ed the House Labor and Conmerce Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 3:23:15 PM Represent ati ves
Rokeberg, LeDoux, Kott, and Anderson were present at the call to
order. Representatives Lynn, CQuttenberg, and Crawford arrived

as the nmeeting was in progress.
3:23:36 PM

CONFI RMATI ON HEARI NG&( S)
Regul at ory Conmi ssi on of Al aska

3:23: 52 PM

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the first order of business would
be the confirmation of Janis WIlson to the Regulatory Comm ssion
of Al aska (RCA).

3:24:19 PM

JANIS WLSON, Appointee to the Regulatory Comm ssion of Al aska
(RCA), began by saying that she has been an Administrative Law
Judge (ALJ) for first the Alaska Public Uilities Comm ssion
[and |ater] the RCA. She noted that her position as ALJ was the
first position [of this type] in the state; however, at this
time there are many ALJ positions. She explained that this
position was <created in 1981, when the Alaska Pipeline
Comm ssion nerged into the Alaska Public Uilities Comm ssion.
She noted that she has held this position since its creation.

She said “lI’ve had the sanme job for 25 years. Wat | want you
to conclude fromthat ... is ... that the job is a very, very
interesting and varied job.” She stated that she has presided
over all of the concurrent hearings of the Federal Energy

Regul atory Comm ssion (FERC), the Alaska Pipeline Conmm ssion,
the Alaska Public Uilities Comm ssion, and the RCA since she
first held the position, in addition to presiding over utility
matters.

The commttee took an at-ease from3:26 p.m to 3:28 p. m

3:28: 04 PM

CHAI R ANDERSON comented that the RCA deals with a number of
different issues, and opined that M. WIson has expertise in
the various areas, and would be able to address these i ssues.

3:28:52 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- April 26, 2006



M5. WLSON replied that while she does not have nuch experience
in tel ephones, she does have sonme expertise in all of the
required areas.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT nmade a notion to advance the confirmation of
Janis Wlson to the Regulatory Comm ssion of Alaska (RCA), to
the joint session for consideration. There being no objection

the confirmation of Janis WIson was advanced. He noted that
each nenbers’ signature does not reflect the nenber’s vote
during the joint floor session.

3:29:46 PM

SB 300- MOTOR VEHI CLE NEGATI VE EQUI TY/ CONTRACTS

3:29:55 PM

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the final order of business would
be CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 300(L&C), "An Act relating to the
handling of negative equity in notor vehicle transactions; and
relating to the contents of retail installnent contracts.™

3:30: 00 PM

SENATOR RALPH SEEKI NS, Al aska State Legislature, speaking as the
sponsor of SB 300, noted that SB 300 was introduced by request.
He expl ai ned that national banks and credit unions are regul ated
under federal |aw. He said that acceptance conpanies such as
Ford Motor Credit and GVAC are required to follow both federa
and state |aws. He noted that he has been in the industry for
36 years, and is famliar with the issue of negative equity. He
said it is necessary to ensure that the federal requirenments and
restrictions regarding contracts and “negative equity” under
state law line up with the requirenents and restrictions under
federal |aw He stated that, in the industry, this is referred
to as “upside down.” He explained that there are advertisenents
claimng that for “zero down” a person can finance a car,
provided that he/she is creditworthy. He said that finance
contracts can run up to 84 nonths, with the average being 72
months. As a result of not naking a down paynment, nany people,
he said, will find thenselves in a position in which the trade-
in value is less than the anmount of noney owed. He said “the
lines crossing between equity and what you owe extend farther
out today than they ever did before.”

3:32:58 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- April 26, 2006



SENATOR SEEKINS went on to say that the Federal Reserve Board
provi ded guidance on this issue in Regulations M and Z, which
control the manner in which lease and credit transactions are
di scl osed. He explained that state |law has never addressed
where to disclose negative equity on a financing docunent. A
dealer, he said, would be able to work with a federal bank or
credit union on its contract and neet all of the necessary
regul ati ons; however, this nmay not neet all regulations and | aws
of the State of Alaska. This issue, he said, is addressed by SB
300. Referring to a handout in nenbers’ packets, he explained
an “upside down” situation. He pointed out different areas in
which federal |aw requires the negative equity be shown. He
said SB 300 would bring state laws into conpliance wth federa

| aws regarding negative equity. He stated that the Attorney
Ceneral's office was involved in the [drafting process].

3:36: 28 PM

SENATOR SEEKINS, in conclusion, stated that once federal and
state law are in conpliance, there will be no “gray area,” and
everyone in the industry will be on “equal footing.”

3:37:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked if there is a cap on how much
negative equity can be borrowed.

SENATOR SEEKINS replied that there is no cap, although a
person's ability to repay is taken into consideration. He said
that he does not recommend doing this, adding that it is not
favored in the industry as it takes the person out of the market
for a longer period of time;, however, this is an economc
reality.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked if there are any quidelines
regardi ng the maxi mnum per cent age.

SENATOR SEEKINS replied that he is not aware of any guidelines.
He stated that in his experience, the nost negative equity he
has seen is $19,000. He noted that this individual was not able

to finance on the next contract. Years ago, he said, if a
person did not have enough noney for a down paynent, they would
borrow the noney from a second lender. This was referred to as

a “Mckey nmouse loan,” and resulted in two | oan paynents.

3:40: 00 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- April 26, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said “Miuch of it goes back to what the
banks will ... finance.”

SENATOR SEEKINS said that this is correct. He said that Ford
Credit uses a conputer program that assigns a risk to the |oan
and if this does not fit into the “risk profile,” the loan wll
not get financed.

3:41:12 PM

CLYDE (ED) SNI FFEN, JR., Assi st ant Att or ney Cener al
Commerci al /Fair Business Section, Cvil Division, Departnment of
Law (DOL), infornmed the conmttee that his obligations include
enforcenent of the consuner protection statutes. He said that
he has | ooked over the bill and the division is in support. The
division |ooked at the bill from a consumer disclosure

perspective to ensure that consunmers involved in this type of
transaction are fully informed of the cost of refinancing.
Under the current f eder al regul ati ons, he said, t hese
di scl osures are nmde very clear; [on a state level], SB 300
adequat el y makes these discl osures.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if the passage of state
gui del i nes woul d supersede “tighter” federal restrictions.

MR. SNI FFEN replied no. He said that the state cannot regul ate

any institutions that fall under f eder al jurisdiction;
therefore, there is no conflict. This legislation would only
affect entities that fall under state jurisdiction, which

i ncludes the acceptance corporations that do not fit into the
federal definition of a bank or credit union.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if, because the banks have
federal restrictions that differ from the lending institutions,
the state should have nore restrictions on the anount of
negative equity allowed or the amount of tinmes the negative
equity can be “rolled over.”

MR SNIFFEN replied that he is not certain that this 1is
necessary. He said that the [Di vision of Banking, Securities &
Corporations] regulates the mpjority of the state's banking
institutions, which are not federally chartered, and has
conprehensive regulatory control over the aforenentioned
institutions. In regard to limting the amount of “roll overs,”
he said that he has not considered this, although this is
interesting idea and may be sonething to consider in the future.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- April 26, 2006



SENATOR SEEKINS, in regard to limting the anmount of negative
equity and “roll over,” noted that it is allowed in 49 other
states and opined that individuals would go elsewhere to
purchase a vehicle if this was |inted.

3:45: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that this is self-regulating,
adding that the banks wll deny the loan if the anount of
negative equity is too high. He remarked that a person's

“credi tworthi ness” would drive the transacti on.

SENATOR SEEKINS agreed that this is correct. He reiterated that
the industry is in support of the |egislation.

The conmttee took an at-ease from3:45 p.m to 3:49 p. m

3:49:41 PM

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN noved to report CSSB 300(L&C out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSSB 300(L&C) was
reported fromthe House Labor and Commerce Standi ng Comrittee.
3:50:12 PM

ADJ OURNNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at
3:50: 21 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- April 26, 2006



